



Winterthur Way Estate Rules

Revised November 2020

Contents;

- 1. Introduction
- 2. Contact Details
- 3. Estate Office
- 4. Parking
- 5. Gates & Shutters
- 6. Bins & Recycling
- 7. Bike Stores
- 8. Balconies and Patios
- 9. Communal areas
- 10. Water & Electric Meters
- 11. Aerials & Satellite TV
- 12. Pets
- 13. Antisocial behaviour
- 14. Drains
- 15. Building Works and DIY
- 16. Replacement Items [Fobs, keys etc.]
- 17. Fire
- 18. Subletting an Apartment at Victory Hill
- 19. Charges for breach of covenants
- 20. Water Leak Fact Sheet

1. Introduction

The Management Company (MC) of Winterthur Way (WW) is Victory Hill Management Company Ltd (VHMC), a registered UK company whose members each own one or more apartments within the development. The Directors of the Company are elected volunteer representatives of the members (i.e. Leaseholders/apartment owners) and are appointed to ensure the development is managed to a high standard for the fairness and benefit of all members and residents. Members wishing to be considered as VHMC Board members should contact the Managing Agent who will inform the Board.

The Managing Agent (MA), appointed by VHMC is employed to manage and maintain the standards of the communal parts of the development, and collect service charges from the members on behalf of VHMC. It is the MA's role to ensure all members and residents abide by the terms of their Lease and the Estate Rules. It is the member's/leaseholder's

responsibility to ensure that sub-tenants, where apartments have been let, also **fully** abide by the terms of the Lease and these Rules.

Under the Lease, members are required to ensure that sub-tenants sign a Deed of Covenant ("DoC") under which the sub-tenant agrees to abide certain specified obligations placed members. Members are also required to ensure that sub-leases / tenancy agreements contain a clause stating that the sub-tenant has read and will abide by these Estate Rules. For more information please refer to section 18.

The Estate Manager and other staff/contractors are employed by the MC, but managed day-to-day by the MA. The Estate Manager is available for advice and assistance to all members and residents where possible during working hours.

The following Estate Rules are a combination of the covenants set out in each apartment Lease, and Estate Rules approved by the Board of VHMC. All members / Leaseholders and residents of Winterthur Way are required to abide by these Estates Rules.

2. Contact Details and Website

All leaseholder or resident enquiries must be directed to the Managing Agent.

Managing Agent: Chaneys Chartered Surveyors

Chiltern House, Marsack Street, Reading, RG4 5AP

T: 0118 9722333

E: <u>info@chaneys</u>-cs.com W: www.chaneys-cs.com

Emergency out of hours: 07860 268 887

Victory Hill has a very comprehensive website which owners and residents may access for additional information on www.winterthurway.co.uk



Winterthur Way Community https://www.facebook.com/groups/582429975554276

3. Estate Office

The Estate office is adjacent to the multi storey car park, opposite Block A.

Sarah Morrisen, Senior Property Manager and Sara Martin, Assistant Property Manager

both from Chaneys Chartered Surveyors work in the Estate office. Working hours are 8:30am – 5pm, Monday to Friday.

Should you need to contact the Team you can visit them at the office, email <u>info@chaneys-cs.com</u> or call 0118 304 0487.

The postal address of the Estate Office is: -

The Estate Office Victory Hill Estate Winterthur Way Basingstoke RG21 7UB

4. Parking

Parking is in allocated spaces in different areas. The first is the multi-story car park ("MSCP") off Winterthur Way. This parking is shared with Winterthur Life UK Ltd and access is through a fob operated shutter (see below). Secondly, there are under-croft parking spaces beneath Blocks Cherry, Holly and Elm and again accessed through automated gates. Finally, there are individual spaces marked out in the parking areas as well as individual garages. It is important that all residents park only in the space allocated to their apartment and not in their neighbour's space. In addition to the allocated spaces, there are a number of visitors' parking spaces (see below).

Resident Parking

- a) Vehicles shall only be parked within marked parking bays. Those not parked inside a marked bay (i.e. within the bay markings) will be deemed improperly parked.
- b) Under the Lease of your apartment, you may be allocated a numbered parking bay for one vehicle. If you are unsure which is your allocated parking bay, please contact the MA or Estate office.
- c) It is not permitted to park any trade vehicles, lorries, boats, caravans, motorised homes or temporary structure in the parking space or anywhere within the development.
- d) Victory Hill operates a parking permit and management scheme operated and managed by an independent third party. Any parking disputes should only be directed to the nominated parking management company and not the MA.

Visitor Parking

- a) There are 16 visitors' spaces in the development. These are marked by the letter 'V'.
- b) Of the 16 visitors' spaces, 5 have recently been added at the front of Cherry Block (please see map below)



- c) These bays are for visitor use only and not for residents' parking.
- d) Information about permitted lengths of stay and permitted return times to Visitor's parking bays is displayed at various points around the Estate.

Those who are improperly parked may be liable to a penalty.

5. Gates and Shutters

- a) The automated gates leading to the undercroft carparks are operated by a remote electronic fob relating to the location of your parking bay. This should have been provided to you when you moved in. Replacement fobs are available against a charge but are only issued to lessees. Please refer to the 'Replacements' section.
- b) The automatic shutters and entrance doors to the multi storey car park are operated by an electronic fob that should have been provided to you when you moved in.

 Replacement fobs are available against a charge but are only issued to lessees. Please refer to the 'Replacements' section.
- c) When entering or leaving the development do not tailgate (i.e. immediately follow) any vehicle. VHMC is not liable for any damage or injury sustained by tailgating.
- d) In the event of a barrier failure contact the EM or MA during working hours or call the emergency out of hours number, 07860 268887.

6. Bins & Recycling

- a) Bin stores for General Waste are located at ground level beneath block Oak & Yew, and adjacent to block Elm & Fir. General Waste refers to daily household waste, and not bulky items such as old furniture, mattresses, white goods, TVs, etc. Oak and Yew binstores are only accessible with an electronic fob.
- b) Recycling bins are provided in the stores. It is important that only items that can be recycled are put in these bins. Your recycling should be placed clean dry and loose into the bin and not in a plastic carrier bag or black sack. Basingstoke and Dean Borough Council ("B&DC") can provide you with a reusable bag for the purpose of separating your recycling in your apartment. All you need to do is fill up your bag with all of your clean and dry paper, card, plastic bottles, tins and cans. Take your bag down to the recycling bin and empty it into the bin. Take your bag back to your flat and fill it up for the next time.
- c) All rubbish must be placed inside the waste bins within the bin store, and not on the floor or in communal areas inside or outside the building. Waste not placed in the bins

- provided will attract vermin, and B&DC will refuse to empty the bins in that store.
- d) Owners and residents must arrange for any bulky item to be collected by B&DC or arrange for it to be taken to the B&DC Household Waste Recycling Centre, Wade Road, Basingstoke RG24 8FA. Any persons identified as responsible for abandoned waste will result in the flat occupier being liable for cost of the removal, a lease breach warning and a fine.

7. Bike Stores

- a) Bike stores are provided, stores are located at blocks Oak, Yew & Fir. Access to respective bike stores is by key pad code only. Access code is available from the MA upon request.
- b) Only bikes may be stored in the bike store.
- c) Bikes stored elsewhere around the development, such as in the communal hallways or anywhere else on the estate, will be removed immediately and disposed of after fourteen (14) days. A bike can be retrieved within the 14 days against a fee as determined by the MA.

8. Balconies and Patios

The Lease states that balconies may be used "for the purpose of displaying small planters". However, the following applies to all apartments, and covers balconies and patios:

- a) Barbeques are not permitted for obvious safety and courtesy reasons.
- b) Cigarette ends should be disposed of correctly and should only within your apartment. Cigarette ends should not be disposed of in a way that litters the grounds, could cause injury to others or cause a fire to a lower apartment or vehicle.
- c) Washing lines are not permitted. The display or hanging of washing or drying on the balconies is not permitted.
- d) Bikes, prams or similar are not permitted on balconies.
- e) Any plants must be contained in such a way that excess water will not cascade to lower balconies/patios and/or mark the façade of the building.
- f) Rubbish or other waste must not be stored on balconies or patios.
- g) All items should be left in a secure manner so as not to be blown away, this is to prevent injury to others or damage to property.
- h) Signs, flags, For Sale or To Let boards are not permitted. This also includes in apartment windows.
- i) The MC or its MA reserve the right to define what is or is not acceptable on the balconies / patios.
- j) It is not permitted to carry out any works to change the style or appearance of the balconies or patios.

9. Communal areas

The following applies to all persons using the communal areas around the development.

- a) Barbeques are not permitted for safety and courtesy reasons.
- b) Cigarette ends should be disposed of correctly. Cigarette ends should not be disposed of in a way that litters the grounds, could cause injury to others or cause a fire to a lower apartment or vehicle.
- c) Clothes or other articles shall not be hung or exposed for drying outside the premises except in the areas permitted.
- d) Storing of rubbish or other waste is not permitted.
- e) Signs, flags, For Sale or To Let boards are not permitted.
- f) Ball games or similar that could cause injury or damage in the development are not permitted.
- g) Vehicle speed within the development must not exceed 5 mph for safety reasons.
- h) Servicing or repair of motor vehicles is not permitted.
- i) Lift doors must not be forced open and it is not permitted to keep them open against the normal operation of the lift mechanism.
- j) Unauthorized persons shall not be allowed to enter any Block for safety and security reasons and residents should challenge anyone attempting to tailgate through the entrance doors. Similarly, do not unlock any entrance door from the intercom system in your apartment unless you know the identity of the person and that person is coming specifically to your apartment.
- k) No person or persons should damage the garden areas by cutting across grassed lawns or walking through the vegetation such as hedges and bushes. Any damage to grassed areas and flora has a substantial cost implication to your service charge. Pathways are provided for pedestrian use.
- I) Do not abandon any vehicle on any part of the development. Under the terms of the property lease, the MC will arrange for the removal and disposal of any abandoned vehicle and if appropriate recover any costs from the owner of the vehicle.
- m) Do not obstruct or permit to obstruct at any time any part of the Communal Areas or Parking Areas.
- n) The MC or its MA reserve the right to define what is or is not acceptable within communal areas.

10. Water and Electric Meters

All apartments have supplier company electric and water meters.

- a) South East Water Meters are found in the communal hallway service cupboards located in the respective apartment lobby area. Access is via either a FB2 key or a square utility key, the appropriate one of which was distributed with the apartment when first built.
- b) If you do not have the appropriate key, please contact the Estate office
- c) For those who still have their keys, please note that the service cupboards must remain closed and locked at all times when meters are not being read, as they are Fire Doors and part of the building fire containment system.
- d) Nothing must be stored in these cupboards. Any item found will be removed and disposed of without notice.

e) The water meters for blocks Willow, Oak, Yew and Maple are located in manholes outside the building and are read from time to time by the water company.

11. Aerials & Satellite TV

- a) All apartments have a communal feed from a satellite dish installed on site that terminates in a box within each apartment. Thereafter any aerial lines and connections are the responsibility of the apartment leaseholder.
- b) No additional satellite dish or antennae are permitted to be fixed to the property (including the balcony/patio). Any costs associated with the removal of additional satellite dishes or antennae will be at the occupants' cost.
- c) Any malfunction of the communal system will tend to affect several apartments, and therefore be readily identified. A malfunction relating to an individual apartment will not affect other apartments. If you lose your TV signal, please will you check with your neighbours to see if they have also lost signal before reporting the issue to the MA.
- d) Any concerns regarding TV reception should be directed to your TV service provider and the MA. The MA will investigate any loss of the communal signal with the help of the EM and appropriate contractors and take the necessary remedial action.
- e) Any repair to the communal system is under the service charge, whereas any malfunction within an apartment is the responsibility of the leaseholder to repair.

12. Pets

The Lease provides for no more than one dog, cat or domestic pet to be allowed to be kept by any one lessee subject to it not causing a nuisance. However, sub-leases for rental property may not allow pets to be kept.

- a) Please think very carefully about keeping a pet in a flat. Apart from issues of cleanliness and hygiene think also of the implications of keeping a pet in a small space without ready access to the outdoors.
- b) The Board of VHMC are not adverse to residents keeping pets but require the MA to keep a Register of Pets for health and safety reasons. For this reason, all pets must be registered with the MA and such registration shall include a full description (age/type/colour/name etc.) as well as the pet's chip identification number.
- c) Pets must always be kept under control within the development whether inside or outside your apartment.
- d) The pet owner always remains responsible for the behaviour and habits of their pet.
- e) Pets must not be allowed to foul or damage the communal areas or gardens and if they do then the owner must clear up.
- f) Any costs associated with cleaning fouled areas or repairing damage will be forwarded to the resident concerned.

13. Antisocial behaviour/breaches of Lease

VHMC will not tolerate any antisocial behaviour within the development, and appropriate action will be taken, and the police will be informed accordingly. All residents must respect other apartment occupiers and keep noise levels to a minimum. Whilst it is accepted that some noise is unavoidable as part of communal living, you can help by:

- a) Children must not play unsupervised and ball games are not allowed. Please be mindful that children playing in a residential area can cause unnecessary noise. Please be mindful of the times of day you allow your children to play, children or groups of children playing into the late evening is unacceptable. Children are not allowed to play in the carpark areas.
- b) Children are not allowed to play inside the communal lobbies.
- c) Residents need to considerate when living in flats so please ensure that noise is kept to an absolute minimum. Children running around and shouting, using scooters in flats etc is not acceptable.
- d) Avoiding undertaking DIY and internal improvements work in the evenings and if possible, not at weekends.
- e) Not sounding of horns or playing loud music between 11pm and 8am or making other excessive noise.
- f) Not aggressively revving motor engines and limiting excessive noise from gathered groups, such as during parties.
- g) Victory Hill Management Company will take action against any breaches of lease by issuing warnings and fines. Persistent breaches can lead to further legal action.
- h) Please report any issues to the estate office or email info@chaneys-cs.com

14. Drains

The sewage system is not a "General Waste Disposal System". Residents must NOT;

- a) Pour any cooking fats, oils or waxy products down kitchen sink wastes or lavatories which then solidifies and blocks the waste disposal system.
- b) Flush babies' nappies, wipes or any other product down the toilet other than flushable and degradable toilet tissue.

Apart from the serious health hazard caused by blocked sewage systems, the costs of attending and removing blockages are substantial and will have to be levied against every leaseholder of the Block under which the blockage occurred.

15. Building Works and DIY

a) No building work within the demised properties that involves any form of structural alterations is permitted without the written approval of the Freeholder, Freehold Managers, and Management Company.

- b) DIY and internal improvements of a "Non-structural nature" such as redecorations/replacing kitchen & bathroom appliances are carried out at leaseholder's risk.
- c) Where such DIY and internal improvements subsequently cause damage to communal areas through water leakage, structural damage or any other type of damage, the cost of any repair/remedial works to the communal area will be charged to the appropriate occupier accordingly.

16. Replacement Items

Any replacement requested from the MA must be from the leaseholder or the leaseholder's letting agent of the apartment. The MA will not accept requests from sub-tenants.

- a) Parking Permits: replacement permits are available by request directly from the parking enforcement company against a small fee. Please contact the MA for guidance.
- b) Entrance fob: the fob that operate the main entrance to the respective Block. Replacements are available by contacting the MA by email with, your name, apartment number and contact details. Payment details will be given by email by the MA.
- c) Gate Fob: the automated main entrance gates to each Block are operated by a remote electronic fob. Replacements are available by contacting the MA by email with; your name, apartment number and contact details. The fobs are programmed by the EM and left in your post box unless you instruct the MA otherwise but note you will be charged for any cost such as registered postage. For costs of the remotes and fobs contact the MA.

17. Fire

Fire Risk Assessment - Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

- An independent Fire Risk Assessment (FRA) has been completed by an approved Fire Safety Inspector for the communal areas of Victory Hill. This is carried out to comply with current fire prevention legislation. Where there are fire notices around the communal areas of the development these should be read and complied with by all residents. These notices should not be removed, they are there for your safety. If you have any questions or concerns, contact the MA.
- All Blocks conformed to the building and fire regulations at the time of construction, and as such should provide a reasonable degree of fire resistance between individual apartments. Each Block is compartmentalised to conform to the Fire Brigade's 'stay-put' policy, unless of course the fire is in your apartment.
- Front door self-closers are part of the Fire and Safety requirements and must be fitted and working. Similarly, internal doors within apartments with self-closing mechanisms should

- be fitted and working. These should be checked regularly to conform with the regulations and for your own safety, and the safety of others.
- Apartments may be fitted with smoke detectors, some of which are operated by battery.
 It is the responsibility of the apartment owner to ensure these are always operational. It is
 recommended these are tested weekly, and the battery should never be removed unless
 being replaced with a new battery. If you are unsure of what type you have fitted, or
 require guidance on testing or battery changing, contact the EM.

Procedure in the Event of Fire

- 1. Do not use the lifts in the event of fire.
- 2. In the event of discovering a fire anywhere on the development first call the Fire & Rescue Service by dialling 999 and listen to the operator, who will ask for all the relevant information including name, address, any injured party, and any other relevant information they deem necessary. Do not hang up until the operator tells you to do so. Do not put yourself or others at risk.
- 3. Should a fire occur in your apartment, then immediately warn all other occupiers in your apartment and evacuate the premises, closing windows and doors, and particularly the front door of your apartment to the communal area if possible as you leave.
- 4. Additionally, should a fire occur in another part of your Block the Fire Brigade's 'stay-put' policy should be followed closing all doors and windows of your apartment, and then follow instructions issued by the Fire Brigade who may advise you to evacuate if it is safe to do so.
- 5. Should you discover a fire in any other area of the development, move away from the area as quickly as possible using the normal exit route and call the Fire & Rescue Service as indicated above.

Fire Prevention

To help prevent a fire occurring, you should take the following precautions within your apartment:

- Ensure your electrical installation and equipment has been tested and deemed safe.
- Avoid the use of portable heaters with a naked flame, such as paraffin or bottle gas heaters. Ensure all portable heaters are kept well clear of any combustible material.
- If you smoke, ensure that all smoking materials are properly extinguished before you go to bed and empty ash trays into a metal bin.
- Avoid the use of chip pans. Any chip pan should never be left unattended.
- Any cooking implement using cooking oil or fat should never be left unattended.
- Avoid the excessive use of multi-point electrical adaptors and extension leads that can be easily overloaded. Check electrical appliances regularly to ensure no obvious defects exist. Switch off items not in use at the wall socket when not in use.
- Whenever possible do not leave electrical and electronic devices on stand-by.
- Only use candles where they cannot come into contact with combustible materials and ensure they are not left unattended and properly extinguished before going to

- bed or vacating the apartment.
- Close doors at night, especially doors to the lounge and kitchen, to reduce the risk of fire and smoke spreading.

Escape Routes

The entrance halls, landings and stairs form the main escape routes from the building, and it is vital that these are kept clear at all times. Any personal items left here will be removed without notice. These routes are marked as fire escapes.

Yearly checking of individual apartment front doors

Following recommendations from the Fire Risk Assessment, VHMC are required to check individual front doors to each flat to ensure they meet fire regulations. Access must be allowed for this to take place.

18. Subletting an Apartment at Victory Hill.

<u>The Lease requires that if a leaseholder wishes to sub-let an apartment that they need to obtain the consent of MC.</u> Consent will normally be granted subject to the terms of the lease and receipt of required documentation.

The leaseholder is required have to serve notice on the Freeholder and the MC within 21 days of any sub-letting being signed giving full details of the sub-tenants. Failure to comply with any of these obligations will place the leaseholder in breach of the Lease and the leaseholder may be liable to penalty. Full details of sub-leasing requirements are given in clauses 5.8.3 and 5.8.4 of the Lease. A separate guide to letting your apartment can be obtained from the MA.

Sub-letting is not difficult to arrange; the important thing is to make sure that the MA is informed by the leaseholder well before the sub-let process starts. The MA will guide the leaseholder through what is required, how the DoC should be dealt with, what information the leaseholder will have to provide to the MC and the timing of the provision of this documentation, and how the leaseholder serves the notices etc. There is an amount of work involved in this and there may be a small administration charge.

The leaseholder must let an apartment in accordance with the terms of the Lease. Any breach of any covenant of the Lease or the Estate Rules by the sub-tenant will be deemed as a breach by the leaseholder.

It is the leaseholder's legal responsibility to ensure that sub-tenants are fully aware of the obligations under the Lease and the Estate Rules and do not do anything or omit to do anything that might adversely affect the safety and security of the building and its occupants. It is also the leaseholder's responsibility to bring to the MA's attention any defects that might compromise safety and security, including those raised by sub-tenants. In addition, the leaseholder is required to ensure that:

- a) The apartment is only used as a private residence for occupation of a single family [approved number of residents who are named in the sub-lease], and not to carry on or permit any trade, business or profession.
- b) The apartment is not used for any illegal, immoral or improper use.
- c) The term of the sub-lease is appropriate. It can be unwise to sub-let an apartment for more than one year at a time.
- d) A copy of the Lease and its terms along with a copy of the Estate rules are attached to each and every sub-lease so that the sub-tenant fully complies with the covenants and rules contained within.
- e) Notice of the date of letting is given within 21 days to the MA (on behalf of the MC) as well as the Freeholder, including a copy of the Tenancy Agreement, if required, together with details of the sub-tenant and any Letting Agent. Please note there may be an administration fee.

The application to apply for Consent to Let can be made online: http://winterthurway.co.uk/estate/consent-to-let/

19. Charges for breach of covenants

As a party to the Lease, leaseholders are obliged to ensure their sub-tenants, visitors and guests abide by both the Covenants and the Estate Rules. In the case of each breach the apartment owner may be charged an administration fee of £50+VAT along with any further reasonable charges, including if necessary, any legal fees in relation to the breach.



Water Leak - Fact Sheet

Got a leak?

Location	Responsibility	Owner Occupiers	Tenants
In your kitchen/Bathroom (i.e. a leak from a washing machine, dish washer, bath, shower etc)	Apartment Owner or their Letting Agent.	Office Hours: Repair and inform Winterthur Estate Manager. Out of Hours; Call an emergency plumber	Office Hours; Call your Landlord or Letting Agent. Out of Hours; Call your Letting Agent's emergency number
The communal areas (I.e. in the halls, lobby's or car parks)	Victory Hill Management Company Limited	Office Hours; Inform Winterthur Estate Manager. Out of Hours; Call Chaneys emergency Number	Office Hours; Inform Winterthur Estate Manager. Out of Hours; Call Chaneys emergency Number
From the Apartment above	Apartment Owner or the Letting Agent of property with the leak.	Office Hours: Inform Winterthur Estate Manager and notify the occupant of the flat[s] above. Out of Hours; Call Chaneys emergency Number	Office Hours: Inform Win Estate Manager and notify the occupant of the flat[s] above. Out of Hours; Call Chaneys emergency Number
From the roof or walls	Victory Hill Management Company Limited	Office Hours; Inform Winterthur Estate Manager. Out of Hours; Call Chaneys emergency Number	Office Hours; Inform Winterthur Estate Manager. Out of Hours; Call Chaneys emergency Number

Important Numbers;

Winterthur Way Estate Team; 0118 304 0487 Chaneys - Office; 01189 722333 (Mon -

Fri 8:30am - 5pm)

Chaneys - Out of Hours Emergency Number; 07860 268887

Fact Sheet - Winterthur Way - Water Leaks

Water leaks can cause a great deal of damage and should be repaired as quickly as possible. This fact sheet explains the responsibilities of leaseholders (flat owners) for dealing with water leaks. As the owner of a flat you're responsible for any water pipes which exclusively serve your flat, this means all supply and waste pipes in kitchens, bathroom, water tanks, central heating etc. It also includes the main water supply to your flat, i.e. from the water meter, though the communal areas to your property.

Major Leaks

A major leak is defined as one of the following;

- Water running into property which cannot be contained.
- Persistent and constant leak with no obvious let up of flow.
- Water running persistently through electrical fittings.
- Dirty water causing permanent damage.

If there's a major leak in your flat, you should do the following.

- 1. Turn off the water to your flat at the stopcock, this is either in your flat or in the Communal Water Meter cupboard in the hallway.
- 2. Arrange for a qualified plumber to attend ASAP and make any repairs necessary.
- 3. Inform your neighbours, especially if you have any flats below yours.
- 4. Inform the onsite Estate Manager: 07483 903506 / 01256 323756 (Monday-Friday 8:30am 5pm). Or call the Chaneys Emergency Number 07860 268887.

Should your plumber find that the leak is not coming from a pipe which exclusively supplies your flat, you should request a detailed report. You need to send the report to us so we can establish responsibility.

If you fail to arrange for a qualified plumber to attend and allow the leak to continue you will breach your lease and we'll have to take legal action to protect other residents and the building.

Minor Leaks

A minor leak is defined as one of the following;

- Staining only or small amount of water penetration.
- Intermittent leak, more severe than above but containable when it happens.
- Minimal property damage, staining to walls and/or ceilings, clean water or non-permanent damage to furniture, fixtures & fittings.
- Running external overflows.

Minor leaks should be reported to the Estate Manager.

Leaks from neighbouring flats

Water leaks are very common in buildings containing flats. When your upstairs neighbours use washing machines, showers, radiators etc leaks can occur.

Fact Sheet - Winterthur Way - Water Leaks

The first thing to do is to find the cause of the leak and what immediate action is required to stop it. This is not always a straightforward matter because the building is likely to contain many pipes and appliances. Also, water can travel through the structure of the building before emerging in an individual flat. To find the leak:

- 1. Speak to all your neighbours in the block. Remind your neighbours they may not be able to see the leak in their flat as it may be under the floor.
- 2. Once located, ask them to switch off their water until they can get a plumber. Turn off the water supply at the stopcock
- 3. Report the matter to the Estate Manager in office hours or use the Emergency Number.
- 4. If your neighbour is not home and you don't have contact details call us and we'll call them for you.

Take what action you can to lessen the damage such as putting a bucket or bowl below the leak to catch the water. If it's an emergency call 999! If there's a danger of the ceiling falling down call the fire service. The fire service can force entry to the flat above. They may also turn off the water to the whole block if they're unable to find the source of the leak.

Repairs

The damage caused by water leaks is commonly covered by insurance, but there is likely to be an 'excess' to pay. The excess on buildings insurance will be recoverable from the person responsible for the leak. You will need to contact them to ask them to reimburse you this excess. Note that you can only reclaim the cost of repairing any damage done in investigating the leak (but not repairing the leak itself)

It is very important to deal with water leaks quickly because damage resulting from damp and other associated problems can be extensive. The building insurance will not cover damage which could have been avoided

You need to tell the person most likely to be responsible for the leak as soon as possible as well as informing the Estate Manager.

You should also take steps to mitigate your own loss. For example:

- Drying out carpets and moving objects.
- Keep evidence of any expenditure incurred as a result of the leak.
- You should always report water leaks to the buildings and contents insurers as soon as possible in case a claim needs to be made. They will not pay out if you delay your claim.

Why can't Chaneys just enter and repair the leak?

It is the Leaseholder of the flat from which the leak is coming who is responsible for repairing any leak, even if they are subletting their home. In extreme cases where a leaseholder does not undertake the necessary repair, we can force entry. In order to do this, we may need to go to court for legal permission to do this. In cases of major leaks, we could apply for an emergency injunction to force the home owner above to repair the leak or to force entry for our contractors to repair the leak. We have no powers to break someone's door down.

Fact Sheet - Winterthur Way - Water Leaks